
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Date: Wednesday, 25 May 2022 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Council Chamber, Level 2, Town Hall Extension 

 
Everyone is welcome to attend this committee meeting. 
 

 

Access to the Public Gallery 
 

Access to the Public Gallery is on Level 3 of the Town Hall Extension, using the lift or 
stairs in the lobby of the Mount Street entrance to the Extension. There is no public 
access from any other entrance. 
 

Filming and broadcast of the meeting 
 

Meetings of the Health Scrutiny Committee are ‘webcast’. These meetings are filmed 
and broadcast live on the Internet. If you attend this meeting you should be aware 
that you might be filmed and included in that transmission. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Membership of the Health Scrutiny Committee 

Councillors -The membership of the Committee will be confirmed at the Council 
meeting on 18 May 2022 

Public Document Pack



Health Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Agenda 
 
1.   Urgent Business 

To consider any items which the Chair has agreed to have 
submitted as urgent. 
 

 

2.   Appeals 
To consider any appeals from the public against refusal to allow 
inspection of background documents and/or the inclusion of items 
in the confidential part of the agenda. 
 

 

3.   Interests 
To allow Members an opportunity to [a] declare any personal, 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they might have in 
any items which appear on this agenda; and [b] record any items 
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council 
Tax/Council rent arrears; [c] the existence and nature of party 
whipping arrangements in respect of any item to be considered at 
this meeting. Members with a personal interest should declare 
that at the start of the item under consideration.  If Members also 
have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they must 
withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of the item. 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 9 March 2022. 
 

Page 
5 - 10 

5.   Covid-19 and Vaccination Programme Update 
Report of the Director of Public Health, Manchester City Council 
 
At the March 2022 meeting of the Committee, the final draft of the 
Living Safely and Fairly with Covid plan was presented. The Plan 
highlighted the ambition to build a local resilient health protection 
system for the city, learning from the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
A presentation on progress will be provided to the Committee, 
along with the latest available data on Covid-19 vaccination 
uptake and the Spring/Summer vaccination plan. 
 

Page 
11 - 12 

6.   Overview Report 
Report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
 
The monthly report includes the recommendations monitor, 
relevant key decisions, the Committee’s work programme and 
items for information. The report also contains additional 
information including details of those organisations that have 
been inspected by the Care Quality Commission. 
 
**Please note, there will be a Work Programming session at 
the rise of this meeting for Committee members only.** 

Page 
13 - 24 



Health Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Information about the Committee  

Scrutiny Committees represent the interests of local people about important issues 
that affect them. They look at how the decisions, policies and services of the Council 
and other key public agencies impact on the city and its residents. Scrutiny 
Committees do not take decisions but can make recommendations to decision-
makers about how they are delivering the Manchester Strategy, an agreed vision for 
a better Manchester that is shared by public agencies across the city. 
 
The Health Scrutiny Committee has responsibility for reviewing how the Council and 
its partners in the NHS deliver health and social care services to improve the health 
and wellbeing of Manchester residents..  . 
 
The Council wants to consult people as fully as possible before making decisions that 
affect them. Members of the public do not have a right to speak at meetings but may 
do so if invited by the Chair. If you have a special interest in an item on the agenda 
and want to speak, tell the Committee Officer, who will pass on your request to the 
Chair. Groups of people will usually be asked to nominate a spokesperson. The 
Council wants its meetings to be as open as possible but occasionally there will be 
some confidential business. Brief reasons for confidentiality will be shown on the 
agenda sheet.   
 
The Council welcomes the filming, recording, public broadcast and use of social 
media to report on the Committee’s meetings by members of the public. 
 
Agenda, reports and minutes of all Council Committees can be found on the 
Council’s website www.manchester.gov.uk.  
 
Smoking is not allowed in Council buildings.  
 
Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 
Level 3, Town Hall Extension, 
Albert Square, 
Manchester, M60 2LA 
 

Further Information 

For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the Committee 
Officer:  
 
 Lee Walker 
 Tel: 0161 234 3376 
 Email: l.walker@manchester.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Tuesday, 17 May 2022 by the Governance and Scrutiny 
Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 2, Town Hall Extension (Library Walk 
Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Green – in the Chair 
Councillors Appleby, Curley, Hussain, Newman, Reeves, Riasat and Richards 
 
Apologies: Councillor Monaghan 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Midgley, Deputy Leader 
Councillor Reid, Ward Councillor for Gorton and Abbey Hey 
Dr Manisha Kumar, Executive Clinical Director, Manchester Health and Care 
Commissioning  
Jay Patient, Be Well Service Manager, Big Life Group 
Ian Green, PCN Coach, Big Life Group 
Steve Quinlan, Link Worker, Big Life Group 
Lynne Warburton, Pathways CIC 
George Ramsay, citizen of Manchester 
Gaynor Heaton, citizen of Manchester 
 
HSC/22/13  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2022 as a correct record. 
 
HSC/22/14  Living Safely and Fairly with Covid 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Public Health and the Medical 
Director, Manchester Health and Care Commissioning that described that following 
recent national announcements the Director of Public Health, council colleagues and 
other partners had been developing the local Manchester Living Fairly and Safely 
with Covid draft plan. This draft plan had been circulated to Members for 
consideration in advance of the meeting. 
 
Key points and themes in the plan included: 
  

 Summary of our Covid-19 response so far; 

 Covid-19 Inequalities;  

 Epidemiology, including possible future scenarios; 

 National Living Safely with Covid-19 Strategy key information; 

 Building a shared understanding of what ‘living safely and fairly with Covid-19’ 
meant for Manchester – our approach, what we would do and inequalities 
considerations; 

 Local Governance arrangements; 

 Our 12-point plan for Living Safely and Fairly with Covid-19 in Manchester; and 

 Resource requirements. 
 

Page 5

Item 4



The Committee further considered the joint presentation of the Director of Public 
Health and the Medical Director, Manchester Health and Care Commissioning, that 
had been circulated to all Members in advance of the meeting that provided an 
update on COVID-19 activity. 
 
Key points and themes in the presentation included: 
 

 The latest headline figures for the 7 days ending 1 March 2022; and 

 An update on the vaccination programme with particular reference to actions 
taken by Neighbourhood Teams to increase uptake across Wards, vaccine 
breakdown by ethnicity, case studies and feedback. 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

 To welcome the local Manchester Living Fairly and Safely with Covid draft plan, 
noting that it included actions to address inequalities and fairer access to 
services; 

 Welcoming the information relating to the newsletter and the inclusion of the 
trusted voice that had been used to promote the vaccination in local communities, 
adding this model needed to be rolled out across other areas; 

 Noting the prevalence of Covid cases in Manchester and how this could be 
related to increased social mixing and testing behaviours; 

 Was there capacity within the existing teams to respond to any future wave of a 
Covid variant; 

 Noting the removal of free testing and the importance of recognising that 
Omicrom was still present; 

 Were Officers confident that Care Home settings were supported to manage any 
future outbreaks; 

 The challenge in monitoring COVID-19 in future and the need to clarify how the 
Committee would scrutinise this; and 

 Further information was sought on the Pakistani Sounding Board. 
 

The Director of Public Health advised that the relaxation of the national restriction 
rules and the subsequent increase in social mixing would result in an increase in 
positive cases, adding that the vaccination was the best way to protect people from 
serious illness. He advised that following the decline in testing the team were now 
reliant on ONS (Office for National Statistics) data, noting that there were challenges 
associated with how this data was reported. He advised that the intention was to 
establish a bespoke local system to accurately monitor infection rates. He advised 
that a further national announcement was expected in the week commencing 21 
March 2022 regarding the provision of LFT testing for vulnerable people, adding that 
all hospital staff; social care staff and hospital patients continued to be tested. In 
response to the questions raised regarding Care Homes, he stated that any patient to 
be discharged into a care home from a hospital was tested and good relationships 
had been established in Manchester to respond quickly and effectively to any 
outbreak in a Care Home setting. He further added that this area of work and locally 
developed response would be subject to a peer review as it had been recognised 
nationally as good practice. 
 

Page 6

Item 4



The Public Health Consultant advised that the Health Protection Team and the 
Response Hub would be retained in the event they were required as a result of a 
further wave or variant. She stated that when not in a response mode these teams 
would continue their work on wider health protection projects. She commented that 
the local helpline would be retained to offer advice and guidance to both residents 
and schools.   
 
The Consultant in Public Health Medicine provided a response to the comment 
raised regarding the Pakistani Sounding Board by stating that it had been the 
decision of the members of the Board who had agreed to extend the Board to include 
members of the South Asian population. She added that following discussions, it was 
decided to establish a specific Pakistani Sounding Board which was established last 
year. 
 
The Deputy Leader stated that the Manchester Living Fairly and Safely with Covid 
draft plan was a comprehensive document that reflected and built upon the learning 
and good practice developed over the previous two years. She paid tribute to 
everyone involved in the production of the plan and supported the work described to 
address inequalities. She reiterated her call to Government for a fair, sustainable 
funding plan to ensure that the city could deliver on its ambitions for the city and 
improve the health outcomes for all Manchester residents. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
HSC/22/15  Future Delivery of Social Prescribing 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Public Health that provided 
an overview of delivery of social prescribing in Manchester.  
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

 Providing an outline of how the Be Well service worked; 

 Examples of good practice in the delivery of social prescribing; 

 Highlighting case studies of the benefits of the service for Manchester residents; 

 A summary of the findings of the independent evaluation of Manchester’s 
Prevention Programme, and other social prescribing initiatives currently being 
developed and delivered within both Manchester and Greater Manchester; and 

 Describing the next steps in developing and delivering Manchester’s social 
prescribing and wellbeing support provision within the context of the Population 
Health Covid-19 Recovery Plan and Manchester’s Wellbeing Model. 
 

The Committee further received a presentation from Jay Patient, Be Well Service 
Manager, Big Life Group that provided an overview of: 
 

 The aims and values of the Be Well Service; 

 Access; 

 Pathways within Be Well; 

 Progression within service since initial commissioning; 

Page 7

Item 4



 Outcomes; 

 Examples of good practice; and 

 Aims for 2022.  
 

The Committee then heard from George Ramsay and Gaynor Heaton, residents of 
Manchester. Both spoke eloquently of their experience of engaging with the Be Well 
service. They articulated the circumstances which led them to engage with the 
service and the range of positive outcomes that they had achieved as a result. The 
Chair on behalf of the Committee thanked both contributors for attending the meeting 
and sharing their experiences.    
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 
 Recognising the important work of the Be Well service and paying tribute to all of 

the staff involved; 
 What work was being done to support BAME residents; 
 Noting that the number of males accessing the Be Well service was relatively low 

and what was being done to address this; 
 Were Coaches Trauma Informed trained and how would they support an 

individual who was neurodivergent (defined as differing in mental or neurological 
function from what was considered typical or normal);  

 Stating that the term ‘disparities’ should not be used when referring to health 
outcomes, adding that the term ‘inequalities’ was the preferred term and this was 
supported by Professor Michael Marmot;  

 Noting that from April 2020, 10 of Manchester’s 14 PCNs had made formal 
arrangements for Big Life Group to employ and manage their social prescribing 
link workers, how would the patients of the 4 that had not made the formal 
arrangement access social prescribing opportunities;  

 The importance of a wider understanding of social prescribing across other 
services: and 

 Concern about access to mental health services in the city and, while welcoming 
the benefits of social prescribing, commenting that it was important that this was 
not used to cover up gaps in mental health provision. 

 
Jay Patient, Be Well Service Manager, Big Life Group advised that there were many 
positive examples of where informal support groups had been developed that had 
built upon local connections and resilience, making particular reference to the South 
Asian Woman’s Group in Longsight. She further clarified that the data in the 
presentation for the number of referrals for Central and South were combined. In 
regard to the point raised regarding the relatively lower number of male referrals to 
the service she advised this was recognised and consideration was being given as to 
how best promote this service and target the male audience. She further added that 
they would review the literature that was provided to encourage the take up amongst 
the male population. The Consultant in Public Health Medicine commented that this 
gender disparity was reflected across the wider health service and this was not 
unique to the Be Well service.  
 
Jay Patient, Be Well Service Manager, Big Life Group further advised that the 
Coaches were from a wide variety of different professional and ethnic back grounds 
with a broad skills set. She stated that they were Trauma Informed trained. She 

Page 8

Item 4



added that they had established relationships with specialist providers and services 
to refer anyone who was identified as neurodivergent to ensure that they were 
signposted to the most appropriate source of support.   
   
The Consultant in Public Health Medicine stated that people could be referred to the 
Be Well service from other services and not just GPs, adding that the 4 PCNs that 
had not made formal arrangements for Big Life Group could still refer a patient if they 
felt it was appropriate. She further commented that it was anticipated that referrals to 
and demand for this service would increase, noting the impact of the pandemic and 
other recent global issues on people’s mental health. She stated that consideration 
needed to be given to how this service could be commissioned in future years and 
build upon the success reported.  She reported that a Mental Wellbeing Strategy 
would be developed during the year, looking at what could be done to support 
people’s mental health outside of clinical mental health services.  She advised that a 
lot of other things could be done to improve mental health, including for people who 
had clinical anxiety or depression, in addition to ensuring that the clinical mental 
health services were available where these were needed, noting that some people 
would benefit from both social prescribing and talking therapies. 
 
In concluding this item of business, the Chair reiterated the Committee’s appreciation 
to all of the invited guests for attending the meeting and sharing their personal 
experiences. She stated that the Committee would be inviting a future update report 
on the service with particular reference to any environmental programmes that were 
offered, noting the important relationship between green spaces and mental health.  
 
Decision 
 
To note the report and presentation and recommend that a future update report is 
added to the Committee’s Work Programme for consideration at an appropriate time. 
 
HSC/22/16  The Gorton Hub 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Lead Neighbourhoods, Sarah 
Lake, Integrated Neighbourhood Lead for Gorton and Levenshulme (MLCO) and the 
Head of Corporate Estate and Facilities Management that provided an update on the 
Gorton Hub, a new Health and Care Hub in the heart of Gorton. 
 
The Hub would provide a real opportunity to make a significant improvement in the 
management and delivery of public services through co-location and integration 
within a modern, innovative and efficient environment. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

 Describing how the Hub would provide an opportunity to make a significant 
improvement in the management and delivery of public services through co-
location and integration within a modern, innovative and efficient environment; 

 Progress with the partnership working underpinning the integration of services in 
the Hub; 

 Construction and property update; and 

 Noting that the Hub was due to open in October 2022. 

Page 9

Item 4



 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

 What areas would this provision serve and would all elected Members concerned 
be regularly informed regarding the development of this site; 

 How would the success of this model of service delivery be assessed; and 

 This positive model needed to be replicated across the city. 
 
The Strategic Lead Neighbourhoods advised that this site would serve residents form 
the Gorton, Longsight, Levenshulme and Clayton & Openshaw wards, adding that 
meetings with those ward Members would be convened. He advised that the success 
of this development would be assessed across three strands, first being a range of 
Key Performance Indicators to be agreed to measure progress against wider health 
determents, the second against improvements in bringing partners together in the 
Hub, and third, the benefits realised through the land released from the colocation of 
services. He stated that this would be reported to the Committee at the appropriate 
time along with a general update on the delivery of the Hub. 
 
The Committee heard from Councillor Reid, Ward Councillor for Gorton and Abbey 
Hey. She provided a background to the development and the challenges that were 
presented as a result of the pandemic. She reassured the Committee that despite 
this and other challenges the site was being progressed with very positive 
relationships being established with all the multi-agency partners who would 
eventually occupy the site. She stated that she supported a recommendation that the 
Committee continue to receive regular progress reports on this project. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report and recommend that a future update report is added to the 
Committee’s Work Programme for consideration at an appropriate time. 
 
HSC/22/17  Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme.  
 
The Chair recommended that other than the Covid-19 update report the May 2022 
meeting would be dedicated to the annual Work Programming Session.   
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme, noting the above 
comment. 

Page 10

Item 4



Manchester City Council 
Report for Information 

 
Report to: Health Scrutiny Committee – 25 May 2022 
 
Subject: Covid-19 and Vaccination Programme Update 
 
Report of: Director of Public Health, Manchester City Council 
                       

 
Summary  
  
At the March 2022 meeting of the Committee, the final draft of the Living Safely and 
Fairly with Covid plan was presented. The Plan highlighted the ambition to build a 
local resilient health protection system for the city, learning from the Covid-19 
pandemic. 
 
A presentation on progress will be provided to the Committee, along with the latest 
available data on Covid-19 vaccination uptake and the Spring/Summer vaccination 
plan. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Committee are asked to note the report and presentation. 
 

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

Environmental Impact Assessment - the impact of the issues addressed in this report 
on achieving the zero-carbon target for the city 

 

 

Manchester Strategy outcomes Summary of how this report aligns to the OMS 

A thriving and sustainable city: 
supporting a diverse and 
distinctive economy that creates 
jobs and opportunities 

As we move into the recovery phase of the 
Pandemic there is a recognition that Covid-19 has 
had a disproportionate impact on certain 
communities in our city. As part of Building Back 
Fairer we will address the health inequalities that 
have been exacerbated by the Pandemic and the 
Living Safely and Fairly with Covid-19 Plan, 
approved by the Council Executive in March 20 
sets out how we will build a local health protection 
system that reflects the OMS outcomes. 

A highly skilled city: world class 
and home grown talent sustaining 
the city’s economic success 

A progressive and equitable city: 
making a positive contribution by 
unlocking the potential of our 
communities 

A liveable and low carbon city: a 
destination of choice to live, visit, 
work 

Page 11

Item 5



A connected city: world class 
infrastructure and connectivity to 
drive growth 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name:  David Regan 
Position: Director of Public Health 
E-mail:  david.regan@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name:  Sarah Doran 
Position: Consultant in Public Health 
Email:  sarah.doran@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name:  Jenny Osborne 
Position: Population Health/SRO Manchester Vaccination Programme 
Email:  jenny.osborne4@nhs.net 
 
Background documents (available for public inspection): None 
 
 

Page 12

Item 5

mailto:david.regan@manchester.gov.uk
mailto:sarah.doran@manchester.gov.uk


Manchester City Council 
Report for Information 

 
Report to: Health Scrutiny Committee – 25 May 2022 
 
Subject: Overview Report 
 
Report of:  Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
 

 
Summary 
 
This report provides the following information:  

 

 Recommendations Monitor 

 Key Decisions 

 Items for Information - The Health Scrutiny Committee response to the draft 
2021/2022 Quality Accounts submitted by the Greater Manchester Mental 
Health NHS Foundation Trust and reports provided by the CQC listing those 
organisations that have been inspected within Manchester since the Health 
Scrutiny Committee last met 

 Work Programme  
 

Recommendation 
 
The Committee is invited to discuss the information provided and agree any changes 
to the work programme that are necessary.  
 

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name:  Lee Walker     
Position:  Scrutiny Support Officer     
Telephone:  0161 234 3376     
E-mail:  lee.walker@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Background document (available for public inspection): None 

Page 13

Item 6



 

  

1. Monitoring Previous Recommendations  
 
This section of the report contains recommendations made by the Committee and responses to them indicating whether the 
recommendation will be implemented, and if it will be, how this will be done.   
 

Date Item Recommendation Response Contact Officer 

8 December 
2021 

HSC/21/52 
Suicide 
Prevention Local 
Plan 

The Committee recommend that 
consideration is given to Manchester 
contributing to the Greater 
Manchester pilot for the collection of 
key ‘real time’ data co-ordinated by 
the Greater Manchester Suicide 
Prevention lead. 

This recommendation has 
been forwarded for 
consideration. Any reply will 
be reported to the Committee 
via the Overview Report. 

David Regan 

8 December 
2021 

HSC/21/53 
Our Manchester 
Carers Strategy 
Update 
 

The Committee recommend that the 
Deputy Leader consider the options to 
maintain the Carers Emergency Fund. 

This recommendation has 
been forwarded for 
consideration. Any reply will 
be reported to the Committee 
via the Overview Report. 

Councillor Midgley, 
Deputy Leader 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 14

Item
 6



 

  

2.  Key Decisions 
 
The Council is required to publish details of key decisions that will be taken at least 28 days before the decision is due to be taken. 
Details of key decisions that are due to be taken are published on a monthly basis in the Register of Key Decisions. 
 
A key decision, as defined in the Council's Constitution is an executive decision, which is likely:  
 

 To result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the 
Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates, or  

 To be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the area 
of the city. 
 

The Council Constitution defines 'significant' as being expenditure or savings (including the loss of income or capital receipts) in 
excess of £500k, providing that is not more than 10% of the gross operating expenditure for any budget heading in the in the 
Council's Revenue Budget Book, and subject to other defined exceptions. 
 
An extract of the most recent Register of Key Decisions, published on 16 May 2022, containing details of the decisions under the 
Committee’s remit is included below. This is to keep members informed of what decisions are being taken and, where appropriate, 
include in the work programme of the Committee.  
 
Decisions that were taken before the publication of this report are marked *  
 
There are no Key Decisions currently listed within the remit of this Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 15

Item
 6



 

  

3. Items for Information 
 
3.1 The Health Scrutiny Committee response to the draft 2021/2022 Quality Accounts submitted by the Greater 
 Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust. This reply was emailed to the Trust 13 May 2022.  
 
Dear Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust, 
 
As Chair of Manchester City Council’s Health Scrutiny Committee, I would like to thank you for the opportunity to comment on your 
Trust’s Draft Quality Account for 2021/22. Copies of the draft quality account were circulated to members of the committee for 
consideration and comments received have been included below. We would like to submit the following commentary to be included 
within your final published version. 
 
The Committee recognise the unprecedented challenge that the COVID-19 pandemic continues to place on the Trust and we would 
firstly like to take this opportunity to express our sincere gratitude and appreciation to all of the staff working at the Trust, both 
frontline and back office, for their continued professionalism and dedication to ensuring services and care continues to be delivered 
to patients. The Committee would be grateful if this appreciation could be communicated to all staff. 
 
We acknowledge that the opening welcome statement from the Chief Executive recognises and praises the continued commitment 
and professionalism demonstrated by staff throughout the year and it sets a tone of directness and transparency throughout the 
draft Quality Account. The statement clearly identifies the many key achievements over the previous twelve months and describes 
the priorities for the coming year, providing a clear commitment to continued service improvement.  
 
The Committee welcomes the consistent, clear and concise reporting method throughout the report that identifies projects, actions 
and outcomes against the priorities agreed for 2021/22 across a range of activities. The report clearly describes to the reader how 
the Trust is performing against national standards and a useful narrative is provided to assist the reader. Throughout the report Next 
Steps and Key Actions for 2022/23 are clearly listed and described. The Committee further commented that the inclusion of a 
glossary of terms that had been provided within the report is useful to assist the lay reader to understand the document. 
 
The Committee acknowledge and welcome the outcomes of the National Patient Survey of community mental health services that 
reported that the Trust had scored highest in relation to how you organise care for service users in the community. The Committee 
welcome the stated commitment that throughout 2022/23, you will continue with your efforts to ensure that you will do everything 
you can to improve outcomes, deliver the safest care and integrate services around the service users, with the commitment that you 

P
age 16

Item
 6



 

  

will do this within a culture of quality and continuous improvement. We further note and welcome the establishment of the Quality 
Improvement Committee and the Quality Improvement Operational Delivery Group to deliver and monitor this important area of 
activity, including the provision of high-quality training for all staff.  
 
A key and important theme identified for specific attention by the Health Scrutiny Committee over the previous year has been the 
work undertaken across all partners to respond to and address health inequalities that existed and have been brought into sharp 
focus by the COVID-19 pandemic. The Committee particularly welcome the Trust’s stated commitment to Equality, Diversity and 
Inclusion, noting the Trust’s participation in a national pilot scheme and that this work and the Advancing Equalities Strategy 2022-
25 are to be embedded across all areas of work of the Trust. We endorse your stated commitment to reduce variation and 
inequalities, with particular reference to reducing health inequalities by working with community partners and experts by experience 
to co-produce inclusive integrated services to improve outcomes.   
 
At our meeting of January 2022, the Committee considered a report and presentation that described the plans to deliver a new, fit 
for purpose adult mental health unit for patients at North Manchester General Hospital and we welcome the news that it is 
anticipated that this new facility will be built and operational by 2024. We the Committee fully support and endorse the reprovision of 
Park House. In particular we were pleased to learn at our January meeting that service users had been consulted with and closely 
involved with the design of the new facility.  
 
In conclusion, we the Committee would like to take this opportunity to reiterate our gratitude and appreciation to all staff at the Trust 
for their continued hard work and dedication to improving the mental health outcomes of Manchester residents. As in previous years 
the Health Scrutiny Committee have welcomed the opportunity to hear from invited representatives from the Trust who had 
attended our meetings to discuss with Members the delivery of mental health services in Manchester. Noting the significant 
detrimental impact that COVID-19 has had on mental health, the Committee will look to schedule a further discussion on this 
important area of work at a meeting in the new municipal year. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Joanne Green 
Chair of the Health Scrutiny Committee 

P
age 17

Item
 6



 

  

3.2 Care Quality Commission (CQC) Reports 
 
Please find below reports provided by the CQC listing those organisations that have been inspected within Manchester since the 
Health Scrutiny Committee last met: 
 

Provider Address Link to CQC report Report 
Published 

Type of 
Service 

Rating 

Beech House 
Care Homes 
Ltd 
 

Chestnut House 
69 Crumpsall Lane 
Crumpsall 
Manchester 
M8 5SR 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-126288055 

5 March 
2022 

Residential 
Home 

Overall: Requires Improvement 
Safe: Requires Improvement 
Effective: Requires Improvement 
Caring: Requires Improvement 
Responsive: Requires Improvement 
Well-led: Requires Improvement  

Qualia Care Ltd St Marys Nursing 
Home 
St Marys Road 
Moston 
Manchester 
M40 0BL 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-
3745990010 

2 March 
2022 

Nursing Home Overall: Requires Improvement 
Safe: Requires Improvement 
Effective: Requires Improvement 
Caring: Good 
Responsive: Requires Improvement 
Well-led: Requires Improvement 

Crown Clinic 
Limited 

Crown Clinic 
Limited 
Ground Floor 
Global House 
Bailey Lane 
Manchester Airport 
Manchester 
M90 4AB 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-
2845745146 

3 March 
2022 

Doctors / GP 
services 

Overall: Outstanding 
Safe: Good 
Effective: Outstanding 
Caring: Outstanding 
Responsive: Good 
Well-led: Good 

P
age 18

Item
 6



 

  

Manchester City 
Council 

Short Breaks  
7 Edlington Walk 
Newton Heath 
Manchester 
M40 1JA 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-161759521 

26 March 
2022 

Residential 
Home 

Overall: Good 
Safe: Good 
Effective: Good 
Caring: Good  
Responsive: Good 
Well-led: Good 

Qualia Care 
Limited 

St Marys Nursing 
Home 
St Marys Road 
Moston 
Manchester 
M40 0BL 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-
3745990010 

26 March 
2022 

Nursing Home Overall: Good 
Safe: Good 
Effective: Good 
Caring: Good  
Responsive: Requires Improvement 
Well-led: Good 

The National 
Autistic Society 

Mainwaring 
Terrace 
1, 2, 3, 5 
Mainwaring 
Terrace 
Northern Moor 
Manchester 
M23 0EW 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-134620821 

16 March 
2022 

Residential 
Home 

Overall: Good 
Safe: Good 
Effective: Good 
Caring: Good  
Responsive: Good 
Well-led: Good 

LOC @ The 
Christie LLP 

LOC @ The 
Christie 
c/o the Christie 
Clinic 
Wilmslow Road 
Manchester 
M20 4BX 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-464690874 

17 March 
2022 

Medical Care Overall: Outstanding 
Safe: Good 
Effective: Good 
Caring: Outstanding 
Responsive: Good 
Well-led: Outstanding 

P
age 19

Item
 6



 

  

Dr Serena 
Rochford 

Avalon Dental 
Care 
283 Slade Lane 
Levenshulme 
Manchester 
M19 2HR 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-188001536 

17 March 
2022 

Dentist Overall: No Action Required 
 

The Park 
Medical Centre 
 

The Park Medical 
Centre 
434 Altrincham 
Road 
Baguley 
Wythenshawe 
Manchester 
M23 9AB 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-571476646 

8 April 
2022 

Doctors / GP Overall: Good 
Safe: Good 
Effective: Requires Improvement 
Caring: Good  
Responsive: Good 
Well-led: Good 

Reed Specialist 
Recruitment Ltd 

Reed Specialist 
Recruitment Ltd - 
Community Care - 
Manchester 
4th Floor 
The Exchange 
3 New York Street 
Manchester 
M1 4HN 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-
7919580039 

14 April 
2022 

Homecare 
Agencies 

Overall: Good 
Safe: Good 
Effective: Good 
Caring: Good  
Responsive: Good 
Well-led: Good 

Alexandra 
Lodge Care 
Centre Ltd 
 

Alexandra Lodge 
Care Centre 
355-357 
Wilbraham Road 
Chorlton 
Manchester 
M16 8NP 

http://www.cqc.org.uk/l
ocation/1-5718173476 
 

13 April 
2022 

Nursing Home Overall: Requires Improvement 
Safe: Requires Improvement 
Effective: Good 
Caring: Good 
Responsive: Good 
Well-led: Requires Improvement 

P
age 20

Item
 6

http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-5718173476
http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-5718173476


 

  

Manchester City 
Council 

Central Disability 
Supported 
Accommodation 
Services 
Ross Place 
Resource Centre, 
21 Aked Close 
Ardwick 
Manchester 
M12 4AN 

https://www.cqc.org.uk
/location/1-
7452004266 

26 April 
2022 

Supported 
Living 

Overall: Good 
Safe: Good 
Effective: Good 
Caring: Good  
Responsive: Good 
Well-led: Good 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 21

Item
 6



 

  

Health Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme – May 2022 

 
Wednesday 25 May 2022, 10am (Report deadline Monday 16 May 2022) 
 

Item Purpose  Lead 
Executive 
Member 

Strategic 
Director/ 
Lead Officer 

Comments 

Covid-19 and 
Vaccination 
Programme 
Update 

At the March 2022 meeting of the Committee, the final draft of 
the Living Safely and Fairly with Covid plan was presented. 
The Plan highlighted the ambition to build a local resilient 
health protection system for the city, learning from the Covid-
19 pandemic. 
 
A presentation on progress will be provided to the Committee, 
along with the latest available data on Covid-19 vaccination 
uptake and the Spring/Summer vaccination plan. 

Councillor 
Midgley, 
Deputy 
Leader 

David 
Regan 
 

 

Overview 
Report 

The monthly report includes the recommendations monitor, 
relevant key decisions, the Committee’s work programme and 
items for information. The report also contains additional 
information including details of those organisations that have 
been inspected by the Care Quality Commission. 

   

Work 
Programming 
Session 

The Committee will receive presentations from Directors on 
upcoming issues and challenges within the Committee’s remit, 
following which Members will determine the work programme 
for the forthcoming year. 

Councillor 
Midgley, 
Deputy 
Leader 

Bernadette 
Enright 
David 
Regan 
Chris Gaffey 

This part of the 
meeting will be 
closed to the public. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 22

Item
 6



 

  

Items to be Scheduled 
 

Item Purpose  Executive 
Member 

Strategic 
Director/ 
Lead 
Officer 

Comments 

Single Hospital 
Service Update 

To receive an update report on the delivery of the Single 
Hospital Service. 

Councillor 
Midgley, 
Deputy 
Leader 

Peter 
Blythin 
Ed Dyson 

 

Health 
Infrastructure 
Developments: 
 
Wythenshawe 
Hospital 

To receive a substantive report that describes the plans for 
Wythenshawe Hospital. The report will include, but not 
restricted to, an update on the delivery of the Strategic 
Regeneration Framework (SRF) for MFT’s Wythenshawe 
site; funding agreements to deliver the programme of works, 
with particular reference to the outcome following 
submission of the Expression of Interest for delivery funding 
for the Wythenshawe masterplan to the New Hospitals 
Programme. 

Councillor 
Midgley, 
Deputy 
Leader 

Chris 
Gaffey 

 

Building Back 
Fairer in 
Manchester – 
Addressing Health 
Inequalities 

To receive a report that gives an overview of some of the 
current population health inequalities in Manchester and 
provides examples of how partners across our population 
health and wellbeing system work collaboratively to address 
them.  
This report will include, but not restricted to: 
The work of COVID-19 Health Equity Manchester (CHEM); 
and 
Activities and progress against the Marmot Beacon 
Indicators. 

Councillor 
Midgley, 
Deputy 
Leader 

David 
Regan 
Dr Cordelle 
Ofori 
Sharmila 
Kar 

Previously 
considered at the 
October 2021 
meeting. 

Climate Change 
and Health 

Following consideration of the report ‘An Introduction to the 
Impact of Climate Change on Health and Healthcare in 
Manchester’ 9 February 2022, the Committee will schedule 

Councillor 
Midgley, 
Deputy 

Chris 
Gaffey 
David 

See minutes of 
meeting 9 February 
2022. 

P
age 23

Item
 6



 

  

quarterly ‘deep dive’ reports on specific areas of work and 
specific areas of interest to the Committee. 
 
The subject area and scope of these reports are to be 
agreed by the Chair. 

Leader 
Councillor 
Rawlins 
Executive 
Member 
for 
Environm
ent 

Regan 

Equalities Impact 
Assessment of the 
Better Outcomes, 
Better Lives 
programme 

To receive a report that provides information on the 
Equalities Impact Assessment of the Better Outcomes, 
Better Lives programme. 

Councillor 
Midgley, 
Deputy 
Leader 

Sarah 
Broad 

 

 

P
age 24

Item
 6


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Covid-19 and Vaccination Programme Update
	6 Overview Report

